
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 4, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements 
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held July 21, 2025 
• Executive Session held July 21, 2025 

 
8. Swearing In of Ethics Board Members 

 

PUBLIC HEARING   

9. ZA-C2500171: PR Land Investments, LLC has petitioned for an amendment to the official zoning map 
applicable to the properties provided below. The applicant proposes the properties be rezoned from 
R-1 and R-3: Restricted Single-Family Residential District and Single-Family Residential District to 
RPC: Residential Planned Community, for the development of 120 single-family semi-detached 
homes.  Tax Map Parcel 093 010 (592 HWY 9 S), Tax Map Parcel 093 011 (93 Southwest Border 
Ave), Tax Map Parcel D02 004, and Tax Map Parcel D04 010 (416 HWY 9 S).Public Hearings Dates: 
Planning Commission July 14, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. and Mayor and City Council August 4, 2025, at 5:00 
p.m. City Council for a decision on August 18, 2025. 

 

BUSINESS 

10. VAR-C2500168: Integrity Engineering and Development Services, Inc. with Dawsonville Fee Owner, 
LLC has requested to vary from the general sign regulations at 25 Main Street (Tax Map Parcel D04 
020 004) to allow wall signage on all four (4) façades of the building. Public Hearing Date: City 
Council on Monday, July 21, 2025. City Council for a decision on Monday, August 4, 2025.  

11. Request for Fee Waiver: Exceptional Children’s Festival, October 11, 2025 
12. Georgia Environmental Finance Authority (GEFA) Loan Agreement and Resolution 
13. Ordinance No. 04-2025: An Ordinance Affecting The Compensation Of The Governing Authority; To 

Address Compensation For Meetings Beyond The Regular Meetings Of The Governing Authority; 
And For Other Purposes. First Reading: August 4, 2025; Second Reading and Consideration to 
Adopt: August 21, 2025 

14. Hunting on City Property 
 

   
   MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED: Pending or Potential Litigation, Real Estate Acquisition and/or Personnel 
 
     RESERVED FOR POTENTIAL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS, IF NEEDED 
 
     ADJOURNMENT 
  

The next regularly scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, August 18, 2025. 
 
 
 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 08/04/2025 
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held July 21, 2025 
• Executive Session held July 21, 2025 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/04/2025 
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD JULY 21, 2025 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD JULY 21, 2025 

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

   
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, July 21, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 4 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor John Walden called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.  
 

2. ROLL CALL:  Councilmember Willilam Illg, Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Sandy 
Sawyer, Councilmember Mark French, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager Jacob Evans, City 
Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utilities Director Jacob Barr, 
Finance Director Robin Gazaway, Director of Downtown Development Amanda Edmondson, Zoning 
Administrative Assistant Stacy Harris and Sarah McQuade from CPL.    

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember Phillips. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Walden reminded citizens that City Hall has a donation box available in 
the lobby for the Family Connection Stuff the Bus donation program.  Councilmember French stated 
for the record, that agenda item #18 references Gold Creek Drive and his employer resides on Gold 
Creek Drive along with approximately ninety other residents. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda with the removal of Item #12 made 
by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following item (a) made by S. 
Sawyer; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Executive Session held June 2, 2025  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held June 16, 2025 
• Executive Session held June 16, 2025 
• Special Called Meeting held June 25, 2025 
• Executive Session held June 25, 2025 
• Special Called Meeting held July 9, 2025 
• Executive Session held July 9, 2025 
• Special Called Meeting held July 14, 2025 

 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  The Mayor and Council recognized Chase Bennett as the June 
Employee of the Month and Caleb Reece as the Spring Employee of the Quarter. 
 

9. PROCLAMATION: 2025 GEORGIA RACING HALL OF FAME INDUCTEES:  Mayor Walden 
announced the Induction Ceremony will take place on August 2, 2025 beginning at 1:00 p.m. and 
read the proclamation honoring the 2025 class of inductees.  

 

 PUBLIC HEARING 
 

10. VAR-C2500168: Integrity Engineering and Development Services, Inc. with Dawsonville Fee Owner, 
LLC has requested to vary from the general sign regulations at 25 Main Street (Tax Map Parcel D04 
020 004) to allow wall signage on all four (4) façades of the building. Public Hearing Date: City Council 
on Monday, July 21, 2025. City Council for a decision on Monday, August 4, 2025.  
 

Sarah McQuade from CPL read the variance request and provided the details. She stated staff is 
recommending approval with two conditions; (1) All wall signage installed on the site shall 
substantially comply with the submitted Signs Ordinance variance request and depictions on the 
accompany building elevations; and (2) This approval is not transferable to any other tenant or 
property owner and shall only apply to the subject applicant and property owner.  
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  Mayor Walden conducted the public hearing. 
 

The following person spoke in favor of the request: 
 

• William Marshall, 3615 Braselton Hwy. #201, Dacula, GA – He is representing the applicant, 
Integrity Engineering, and provided an overview of the request.  He reviewed the property, 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, July 21, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 4 
 

site plan and the specifications of the sign request on each side of the building. Lastly he 
reviewed the variance approval criteria. 

 

No one spoke in opposition to the request.  
 

Motion to close the public hearing made by W. Illg; second by S. Sawyer.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.  Mayor Walden stated this item will be on the August 4, 2025 City Council meeting for a 
decision.   

 

BUSINESS 
 

11. VAR-C2500187: Steve Eiberger with Hardeman Communities Inc. has requested to vary from the 
standards of an approved Planned Unit Development (PUD) at 224 Timber Ridge (parcel 083 026 
190) for the construction of one single-family residence. Specifically, they seek (A) to reduce the front 
yard setback from 20 feet to 16 feet and (B) to reduce the rear yard setback from 20 feet to 16 feet. 
Public Hearing Date: City Council on Monday, June 16, 2025. City Council for a decision on Monday, 
July 21, 2025.  
 

Sarah McQuade from CPL provided the history of the variance request and reported staff found no 
justification for a hardship to grant the variance. 
 

Motion to deny VAR-C2500187 made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in 
favor.     

12. Item removed from the agenda   
 

13. REQUEST FOR FEE WAIVER AND ROAD CLOSURE: A FAMILY FAIR SPECIAL EVENT, 
AUGUST 8, 2025:  Layla McBrayer, the new Director of Family Connection, introduced herself to 
Council and provided the details about the free resource event for the community.   

 

Motion to approve the fee waiver of $50 for the permit and $225 for the pavilion rental and to close 
Main Street through the park beginning at 4:00 p.m. on August 8, 2025 made by S. Sawyer; second 
by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

14. RESOLUTION NO. R2025-05: GEORGIA STATE PATROL POST #37 DONATION:  Motion to 
approve Resolution No. R2025-05 as presented made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  (Exhibit “A”) 

   

15. CONSIDERATION OF FINAL PLAT FOR VILLAS AT DAWSONVILLE:  Motion to approve the final 
plat for Villas at Dawsonville as presented made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  (Exhibit “B”) 

 

16. 2026 SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE RATE AND SERVICE CHARGE:  Mayor and Council 
discussed the possibility of moving the waste collection date from Wednesday to Monday with Red 
Oak Sanitation representative John Spagnuolo.  He will let staff know if that is possible; he confirmed 
the service rate would not change for either day of service.  

 

Motion to approve the 2026 solid waste collection service rate from Red Oak Sanitation at $15.90 per 
can, per month, and the service charge for $4.00 per can, per month made by C. Phillips; second by 
S. Sawyer.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

17. NATIONAL OPIOID SETTLEMENT WITH PURDUE PHARMA:  Motion to approve as presented 
made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

  WORK SESSION 
 

18. DISCUSS GOLD CREEK DRIVE:  Public Works Director Hansard reported he needs direction from 
the Council. Councilmember Illg believes they had previously discussed fixing the curved portion of 
the road that may have been incorrect and/or the road in its entirety with concern regarding the cost 
to do so.  Mayor Walden and Councilmember Phillips stated it was the curb also and suggested 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, July 21, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 3 of 4 
 

having Mr. Hansard get a survey to see if there is an issue.  Councilmember Illg stated if it is not 
correct, it needs to be fixed. Councilmember French expressed his concern about the ordinance not 
being followed originally and would not put a price tag on fixing the road in its entirety.  Mr. Hansard 
reported the price of the survey would be approximately $800 and it would not be for the entire road, 
just the area in question. Discussion occurred regarding ownership of the road. Attorney Tallant stated 
once the survey is complete and a legal description is provided, title work could be performed to 
determine the owner so as to request permission if any work needs to be done 
 

Motion to approve getting a survey in the amount of $800 as discussed made by W. Illg; second by 
C. Phillips.  Councilmember French believes according to the City’s ordinance it should have included 
further up the road and been brought up to City standards.  He stated the residents deserve to have 
some action taken but in his opinion it is not the correct action and believes the entire road should be 
made right. Councilmember Phillips stated they had discussed previously it is a gray area and the 
Council is attempting to look at their ordinances to be sure going forward there is no gray area.  
Discussion occurred regarding conversations with the homeowners/HOA; Mayor Walden asked Mr. 
Hansard to reach out to them.  Councilmember Illg thanked the communities using the road daily 
recognizing it has taken time to work through the issue. Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

  STAFF REPORTS 
 

19. JACOB EVANS, CITY MANAGER:  He reported the leak adjustments for the month were $153.76.  
He also announced Food Truck Friday is August 1, 2025 and the City has scheduled two concerts.  
The first will be a Bob Seger tribute band and will be held on August 23, 2025 and the second will be 
a Christian themed band and will be held on September 27, 2025.  Both concerts will begin at 7:00 
pm.  Lastly, he announced Tommy Townsend will be performing Saturday, July 26, 2025 at 
Grandaddy Mimms.   

 

20. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE DIRECTOR:  Financial reports were provided to represent fund 
balances and activity through June 30, 2025.       

       MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS:   
 

Mayor Walden thanked the community for coming out to his Chat with the Mayor event and expressed 
his gratitude to Councilmembers French and Illg for participating in the event also.  He is planning 
another Chat with the Mayor event in October and invites the public to attend.  He also reported he 
attended the GMA Convention in Savannah last month and came back with some great information.  
He suggested developing a Community Board which could include leaders from the City and County 
to network, exchange ideas, discuss growth and work together.  
 

Councilmember Illg stated he spoke with a couple of Dawson County Commissioners about holding 
a joint retreat in the future and they were receptive to meeting.  

 

             EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

 At 5:46 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for pending/potential 
litigation, real estate acquisition and/or personnel was made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. 

 

 Motion to close executive session was made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  
 

 At 7:39 p.m. a motion to resume regular session was made by M. French; second by S. Sawyer.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.   

  
 
 
 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, July 21, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 4 of 4 
 

 ADJOURNMENT 
 

At  7:40 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by C. Phillips; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. 

  
 

 Approved this 4th day of August, 2025 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   John Walden, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  
 
         
   Sandra Sawyer, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
 
 
 
Attested: _________________________        
               Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 

 





Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    SWEARING IN OF ETHICS BOARD MEMBERS 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/04/2025 
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:   
 
 

   TO SWEAR IN ETHICS BOARD MEMBERS 
 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS WERE UNANIMOUSLY APPOINTED AT THE JUNE 16, 2025 CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING: 
 

• ELIZABETH DUNCAN, MEMBER AT LARGE  
• CALVIN BYRD, POST #1  
• ANGIE SMITH, POST #2 
• NATALIE JOHNSON, POST #3 
• ARTHUR BROWN, POST #4 

 

TERMS WILL BEGIN ONCE MEMBERS ARE SWORN IN.  INITIAL TERMS FOR THE MEMBER AT LARGE, 
POST #1 AND POST #3 WILL BE THREE YEARS THEN TWO YEAR THEREAFTER; ALL OTHERS WILL 
BE TWO YEARS 
   
    

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
    RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Kevin Tallant, City Attorney 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT: ZA-C2500171 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/04/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:    PUBLIC HEARING  
 

ZA-C2500171: PR Land Investments, LLC has petitioned for an amendment to the official zoning 
map applicable to the properties provided below. The applicant proposes the properties be rezoned 
from R-1 and R-3: Restricted Single-Family Residential District and Single-Family Residential District 
to RPC: Residential Planned Community, for the development of 120 single-family semi-detached 
homes. Tax Map Parcel 093 010 (592 HWY 9 S), Tax Map Parcel 093 011 (93 Southwest Border 
Ave), Tax Map Parcel D02 004, and Tax Map Parcel D04 010 (416 HWY 9 S). Public Hearings Dates: 
Planning Commission July 14, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. and Mayor and City Council August 4, 2025, at 
5:00 p.m 

HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
• +/- 34.71 acres 
• Gateway Corridors, Residential 
• Vacant land 
• Planning Commission tabled discussion until August 11, 2025 – traffic study was 

not available at the time of the public hearing  
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: CPL, Planning & Zoning Department 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  9      
 

 

 















































































































































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT: VAR-C2500168 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/04//2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:   DECISION 
 

VAR-C2500168: Integrity Engineering and Development Services, Inc. with Dawsonville Fee 
Owner, LLC has requested to vary from the general sign regulations at 25 Main Street (Tax Map 
Parcel D04 020 004) to allow wall signage on all four (4) façades of the building. Public Hearing 
Date: City Council on Monday, July 21, 2025. City Council for a decision on Monday, August 4, 2025. 

 

HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
• 1.18 ACRE PARCEL CURRENTLY UNOCCUPIED RESTAURANT 
• PROPOSED MCDONALD’S SIGNAGE ON ALL FOUR (4) FACADES OF THE 

BUILDING 
• PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) REZONED 11/14/2005 

 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: CPL, Planning & Zoning Department 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   10     
 

 

 









































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    REQUEST FOR FEE WAIVER: EXCEPTIONAL CHILDREN’S FESTIVAL, 

OCTOBER 11, 2025 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/04/2025 
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:   
 

    
 TO CONDISER A FEE WAIVER IN THE AMOUNT OF $200 (PAVILION AND PERMIT FEE) FOR 

THE KNIGHTS OF COLUMBUS EXCEPTIONAL CHILDREN’S FESTIVAL TO OCCUR IN MAIN 
STREET PARK ON OCTOBER 11, 2025 FROM 10:00 AM TO 1:00 PM.   

 
 PAVILION #1 – ALL DAY RENTAL $150. 
 PERMIT APPLICATION - $50 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• IKE PANKHURST REPRESENTING KNIGHT OF COLUMBUS WILL BE IN ATTENDANCE 
• SECOND ANNUAL EVENT HELD AT MAIN STREET PARK; NO PREVIOUS ISSUES. 

 
 

   
    

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
    RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Jacob Evans, City Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   11     
 

 

 























                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    GEORGIA ENVIRONMENTAL FINANCE AUTHORITY (GEFA) LOAN 

AGREEMENT AND RESOLUTION 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/04/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF GEFA LOAN AGREEMENT AND RESOLUTION 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

    
   LOAN IS TO FUND THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT  
 
 

   
    

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
    RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Jacob Evans, City Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   12     
 

 

 



































4 August, 2025

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE

GFPF002

18,800,000
GEORGIA ENVIRONMENTAL FINANCE AUTHORITY





                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 04-2025 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/04/2025 
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:   
 

   FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 04-2025 
    

AN ORDINANCE AFFECTING THE COMPENSATION OF THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY; TO ADDRESS 
COMPENSATION FOR MEETINGS BEYOND THE REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE GOVERNING 
AUTHORITY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. FIRST READING: AUGUST 4, 2025 

  
 

FIRST READING: AUGUST 4, 2025  
 

SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT: AUGUST 21, 2025 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 
 

   
    

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
    RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Kevin Tallant, City Attorney 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
      ORDINANCE NO. 04-2025 

     
AN ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH SECTION 2-21 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
DAWSONVILLE SO AS TO INCREASE THE COMPENSATION OF THE GOVERNING 
AUTHOIRTY; TO CLARIFY COMPENSATION FOR MEETINGS BEYOND THE 
FIRST MONTHLY REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY; AND 
FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 WHEREAS, Section 2.13(c) of the Charter of the City of Dawsonville provides that 

compensation for the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority may be set by City Ordinance;  

WHEREAS, O.C.G.A.  36-35-4 prescribes certain additional procedures which must be 

complied with in order to affect the compensation of the members of the Governing Authority; 

WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville has met the notice and advertising requirements of 

O.C.G.A. 36-35-4, and is scheduled to consider this matter first on August 4, 2025, and then 

consider this ordinance for adoption on August 18, 2025;  

 WHEREAS, the City provides for compensation for certain meetings attended by 

members of the Governing Authority in their official capacity, which meetings must be pre-

approved according to the City’s Charter; and 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to pre-approve certain meetings as well as provide guidelines 

for what types of meetings are pre-approved; 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 

HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

There is hereby enacted a new Section 2-21 of the Code of the City of Dawsonville, which shall, 

from and after the adoption of this Ordinance, read as follows: 

Section 2-21.  Compensation in general and for additional meetings. 

(a) The compensation of the mayor shall be $1,400.00 per month and the compensation of 

each council member shall be $800.00 per month until such time as the compensation of 

Subject: Mayor and Council Compensation 
Date of First Reading: August 4, 2025 

Date of Second Reading: August 21, 2025 
Date of Adoption: ___________________ 

Effective Date: ____________________ 
 

Publication Dates: July 30, 2025, August 6, 2025 and August 13, 2025 
 



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

the mayor and/or council are amended by ordinance. In addition to this monthly 

compensation, the mayor and council members shall also be paid $200.00 for each city 

council meeting other than the first regular city council meeting of the month, and for any 

other meeting that has been pre-approved for compensation by the council.  

(b) The following meetings are pre-approved for payment for members of the City of 

Dawsonville Governing Authority: 

1) Meetings of City of Dawsonville Commissions, Authorities, or committees which 

meetings are attended by members of the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority 

either as a liaison to that Commission, Authority, or committee, or because the 

member of the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority is a member of the said 

Commission, Authority or committee. 

2) Training and educational meetings which will benefit the service of a member of 

the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority, which trainings are conducted by 

any or a combination of any of the following entities: Georgia Municipal 

Association; the Carl Vinson Institute of Government; the Georgia Mountains 

Regional Commission; the Georgia Department of Community Affairs, or any 

division of State Government. 

3) Board meetings and committee meetings of organizations upon which members of 

the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority sit which positions are specifically 

designated as positions for a member of the City of Dawsonville Governing 

Authority. 

4) Official events of organizations, which organizations have as a member of their 

board a position specified as being for a member of the City of Dawsonville 

Governing Authority, if the official seeking compensation for the official event is 

a Member of the Board of Directors of the organization sponsoring the event. 

5) Official events of the City of Dawsonville, its Commissions, Agencies, or 

committees. 



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

(c) Members of the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority shall submit their request for 

compensation for a meeting upon forms provided by the City Manager or his designee.  

The form shall be endorsed by one other member of the City of Dawsonville Governing 

Authority prior to submission, which endorsement is for the purpose of confirming that the 

meeting falls within the description of meetings contained in subparagraphs (1) through (4) 

of subsection (b), above.  The submission may contain more than one meeting on a single 

form, and should be submitted not more than thirty (30) days after the earliest meeting 

covered by the form. 

(d) Meetings other than those covered by subparagraphs (1) through (4) of subsection (b), 

above for which a Member of the Governing Authority believes they should receive 

compensation shall be submitted for consideration to the Governing Authority prior to the 

event.  The person seeking compensation shall not vote on whether the meeting should be 

one for which compensation is paid. 

(e) Under no circumstances shall any member of the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority 

apply for or receive any compensation for an event at which the person seeking 

compensation was engaged in campaign activities related to his or her office or any office 

which said person may be seeking. 

 

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after January 1, 2026. 

 

SO ADOPTED by the City Council of Dawsonville, Georgia, this _____ day of August, 2025. 

       CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

 
       By:        

       John Walden, Mayor 
 

       
Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

          _______  
       William Illg, Councilmember Post 2 
 
             
             
       Sandy Sawyer, Councilmember Post 3 
 
 
             
       Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
 
ATTESTED TO BY: 
 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk   
 
 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    HUNTING ON CITY PROPERTY 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/04/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   HUNTING ON CITY PROPERTY DISCUSSION 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 
 

   
    

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
    RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: John Walden, City Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   14     
 

 

 



HUNTING PERMISSION AND RELEASE 
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

 
Whereas, the undersigned is an employee (”Employee”) of the City of Dawsonville (“City”) that desires to  hunt on City owned property commonly 
described as listed below (the “Hun�ng Area”); 

• Spray-fields approximately 214 acres 
• Well #111 approximately 30 acres 
• Burt Creek WWTP approximately 5 acres (bow only) 

Whereas, the City has a prac�ce of allowing employees and their immediate family members to hunt on the City owned property listed above; 

Whereas, no other areas owned by the City are open to hun�ng; 

Whereas, each year, employees must complete and submit to the City Manager for approval this Hun�ng Permission and Release form and are subject 
to the terms and condi�ons and benefits conferred on Employee by virtue of receiving permission to hunt in the Hun�ng Area 

AND WHEREAS, Employee and his/her Immediate Family Members signing below, in exchange for said hun�ng permission, agree as follows: 

1. Only Employee and his/her immediate family (parents, spouse, son or daughter and/or stepchildren) that have signed and been approved 
by the City Manager below my hunt in the Hun�ng Area. No guests will be allowed or permited to hunt. Employee and his/her immediate 
family must all have valid Georgia hun�ng licenses. Permission expires upon termina�on of employment with the City or one year from date 
hereof, whichever occurs first. 

2. Prior to any hunt, Employee must inform the City Manager or his/her designee of Employee’s intent to hunt on specific days so that the City 
Manager may avoid having too many individuals hun�ng at any given �me.  No hun�ng may occur during the normal business hours of the 
City, nor during any �me when the Employee is “on duty” or “on call” for the City. 

3. All persons hun�ng pursuant to this form agree to take all due steps, care, and cau�on necessary to ensure that any and all shot, loads, 
bullets, arrows, and other hun�ng ammuni�on are discharged only in such a way that they will not leave the property of the City, and they 
further agree that they either are or will make themselves aware of the loca�on of the boundaries of the City’s property for that purpose 
as well as to avoid any poten�al issues of trespass. 

4. Employee and his/her immediate family agree, on behalf of themselves as well as their heirs, administrators, executors, beneficiaries, and 
successors to the full permissible extent of Georgia law, to release and waive any and all claims that  exist or may exist in the future as a 
result of Employee and his/her immediate family hun�ng in the Hun�ng Area, including but not limited to any claim of personal injury, 
damages, illness, or death, whether or not actually arising out of the hun�ng ac�vity conducted on the premises. It is the express 
understanding of Employee and his/her immediate family that hun�ng is a dangerous sport and that they are hun�ng in the Hun�ng Area. 

5. Employee acknowledges and agrees that hun�ng in the Hun�ng Area is not in any way related to employee’s du�es as a City Employee, that 
while in Hun�ng Area Employee is not ac�ng in his or her capacity as a City Employee, and that, in general, Employee’s ac�ons and ac�vi�es 
while in the Hun�ng Area are separate and apart from Employee’s employment with the City. 

6. Prior to hun�ng pursuant to the terms of this Permission and release, Employee agrees to obtain the signature of each family member over 
18 years of age and represents that Employee has the legal right to sign on behalf of any family member under 18 years of age. 

7. All person signing this document agree, for themselves as well as their heirs, administrators, executors, beneficiaries and successors, to 
protect, defend, and indemnify the City from any ac�ons, claims, demands or liabili�es arising out of our related to any and all ac�ons taken 
or not taken by the undersigned or the persons for whom they sign, which ac�ons or inac�ons occur in the Hun�ng Area. 

8. All persons signing this document for themselves or on behalf of another have read it and understand it, have been given the opportunity 
to have this document reviewed by an atorney of their own choosing, and sign this document voluntarily. 

So agreed this the    day of        , 20   

 
                   
Employee     Immediate Family Member   Rela�onship 
 
 
              
Immediate Family Member         Rela�onship  Immediate Family Member      Rela�onship 
 
 
 
      Approved:        
Immediate Family Member         Rela�onship    City Manager   Date 
 

Updated 06/2023 


	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2. 07.21.2025 MINUTES City Coucil Regular Meeting and Work Session.DRAFT
	8. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items ETHICS BOARD
	9. 1. 08.04.2025 ES AGENDA _ZA-C2500171_PR LAND INVESTMENT _
	9. 2. ZA-C2500171 Supporting Documents
	10. 1. 07.21.2025 ES AGENDA _VAR-C2500168_INTEGRITY ENGINEERING  DEVELOPMENT SERVICES_
	10. 2. VAR-C25020168 _ INTEGRITY ENGINEERING_Redacted
	11. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items KOC EVENT
	11. 2. Exceptional Childrens Festival permit_Redacted
	12. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items WWTP
	12. 2. GEFA Loan Agreement
	14. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items HUNTING
	14. 2. Hunting Permission and Release Form_Updated 2023
	13. 2. 04-2025 MC Compensation Ordinance.pdf
	There is hereby enacted a new Section 2-21 of the Code of the City of Dawsonville, which shall, from and after the adoption of this Ordinance, read as follows:
	Section 2-21.  Compensation in general and for additional meetings.
	(a) The compensation of the mayor shall be $1,400.00 per month and the compensation of each council member shall be $800.00 per month until such time as the compensation of the mayor and/or council are amended by ordinance. In addition to this monthly...
	(b) The following meetings are pre-approved for payment for members of the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority:
	1) Meetings of City of Dawsonville Commissions, Authorities, or committees which meetings are attended by members of the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority either as a liaison to that Commission, Authority, or committee, or because the member of ...
	2) Training and educational meetings which will benefit the service of a member of the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority, which trainings are conducted by any or a combination of any of the following entities: Georgia Municipal Association; the ...
	3) Board meetings and committee meetings of organizations upon which members of the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority sit which positions are specifically designated as positions for a member of the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority.
	4) Official events of organizations, which organizations have as a member of their board a position specified as being for a member of the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority, if the official seeking compensation for the official event is a Member...
	5) Official events of the City of Dawsonville, its Commissions, Agencies, or committees.
	(c) Members of the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority shall submit their request for compensation for a meeting upon forms provided by the City Manager or his designee.  The form shall be endorsed by one other member of the City of Dawsonville Go...
	(d) Meetings other than those covered by subparagraphs (1) through (4) of subsection (b), above for which a Member of the Governing Authority believes they should receive compensation shall be submitted for consideration to the Governing Authority pri...
	(e) Under no circumstances shall any member of the City of Dawsonville Governing Authority apply for or receive any compensation for an event at which the person seeking compensation was engaged in campaign activities related to his or her office or a...




